
From: Klemperer, Bill   
Sent: 22 January 2021 14:55 
To: M54 to M6 Link Road <M54toM6linkroad@planninginspectorate.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Historic England advice. M54 to M6 Link Road Project. TRO 10054. Mitigation planting 
proposal within block 5/2. 
 
National Infrastructure Planning. M54 to M6 Link Road Project. TRO 10054. Mitigation planting 
proposal within block 5/2. 
 
Further to my email of 8th January we confirm that Table 5.1 of the Highways England Technical 
note: ‘8.22 Assessment of Alternative Locations for Mitigation in Plot 5/2’, January 2021, does reflect 
our assessment of overall impact upon the historic environment. 
 
Bill Klemperer 
Principal Inspector of Ancient Monuments MA MCIfA FSA 
 
Erika Diaz Petersen CMLI   
Landscape Architect 
 
Midlands Region, Historic England | The Axis 
10 Holliday Street | Birmingham | B1 1TF 
  
  

 

We are the public body that helps people care for, enjoy and celebrate England's spectacular 
historic environment, from beaches and battlefields to parks and pie shops. 
Follow us:  Facebook  |  Twitter  |  Instagram     Sign up to our newsletter      

This e-mail (and any attachments) is confidential and may contain personal views which are not the views of Historic England unless 
specifically stated. If you have received it in error, please delete it from your system and notify the sender immediately. Do not use, copy 
or disclose the information in any way nor act in reliance on it. Any information sent to Historic England may become publicly available. 
We respect your privacy and the use of your information. Please read our full privacy policy for more information. 
 
From: Klemperer, Bill  
Sent: 08 January 2021 15:16 
To: 'M54toM6linkroad@planninginspectorate.gov.uk' 
Cc: 'Percy, Tamara'; Diaz Petersen, Erika 
Subject: Historic England advice. M54 to M6 Link Road Project. TRO 10054. Mitigation planting 
proposal within block 5/2. 
 
 
National Infrastructure Planning. M54 to M6 Link Road Project. TRO 10054. 
Mitigation planting proposal within block 5/2. 
 
Background 
 
At the December 2020 Issue specific Hearing the ExA considered proposed relocation of mitigation 
planting in plot 5/2 and made the following request to Historic England:  
 

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FHistoricEngland&data=04%7C01%7CM54toM6linkroad%40planninginspectorate.gov.uk%7C7ee62ff8e95444bfede108d8bee5bdb4%7C5878df986f8848ab9322998ce557088d%7C0%7C0%7C637469241243142256%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=o8GCWizOPPv2cuTjrarSOn6IV5v%2Bu8xnxZDs1dUGDUg%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FHistoricEngland&data=04%7C01%7CM54toM6linkroad%40planninginspectorate.gov.uk%7C7ee62ff8e95444bfede108d8bee5bdb4%7C5878df986f8848ab9322998ce557088d%7C0%7C0%7C637469241243142256%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=1i5NR0KRl1gSI38MCRDPoKeg%2FToXJ6Mkkt9fj41nps0%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.instagram.com%2Fhistoricengland%2F&data=04%7C01%7CM54toM6linkroad%40planninginspectorate.gov.uk%7C7ee62ff8e95444bfede108d8bee5bdb4%7C5878df986f8848ab9322998ce557088d%7C0%7C0%7C637469241243152252%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=HEMNsmFvttH2paCDdh6T7AsMdYaExai1eR30rdsOV28%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwebmail.historicenglandservices.org.uk%2Fk%2FHistoric-England%2Fhistoric_england_preference_centre&data=04%7C01%7CM54toM6linkroad%40planninginspectorate.gov.uk%7C7ee62ff8e95444bfede108d8bee5bdb4%7C5878df986f8848ab9322998ce557088d%7C0%7C0%7C637469241243152252%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=JJZ6uh7NtZD9KzjRgz3cdZuobcSryFRiDbPL%2BrvxUhk%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.historicengland.org.uk%2Fterms%2Fprivacy-cookies%2F&data=04%7C01%7CM54toM6linkroad%40planninginspectorate.gov.uk%7C7ee62ff8e95444bfede108d8bee5bdb4%7C5878df986f8848ab9322998ce557088d%7C0%7C0%7C637469241243162249%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=QDBqNQ1rIx0JVK5qZcMo4LVlHxo7RHesB35WUCSIQb0%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.historicengland.org.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7CM54toM6linkroad%40planninginspectorate.gov.uk%7C7ee62ff8e95444bfede108d8bee5bdb4%7C5878df986f8848ab9322998ce557088d%7C0%7C0%7C637469241243132265%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=DS1hA3y6aDLTRhp1GOt5fZIpMAsLTKg59gumi7lRzFE%3D&reserved=0


‘Applicant to arrange discussion and potential site visit with Historic England and Allow Limited to 
seek to clarify Historic England’s views in respect of effects on designated and non-designated 
heritage assets at Hilton Park with a view to Historic England submitting further information.’ 
 
This email is in response to that request.  
 
A site meeting was held on 6th January 2021 attended by Tamara Percy and Amy Jones of AECOM, 
Bill Klemperer and Erika Diaz Petersen of Historic England, and Mick Rawlings (Historic Environment), 
and Simon Bolter (Ecologist) for Allow Ltd . We walked over the area affected and went through the 
existing scheme proposals for planting within plot 5/2, and various alternatives put forward by Allow 
Ltd.  
 
 
Assessment 
 
We have considered the impacts of mitigation planting proposals in terms of impact upon the 
significance of heritage assets, especially Hilton Hall and the associated Conservatory, both listed 
Grade I. We have taken into account relevant policy including the National Policy Statement for 
National Networks, December 2014 (NPSNN), and the National Planning Policy Framework, February 
2019 (NPPF) and have also been guided by Historic England’s Good Practice Advice in Planning: 3 
‘The Setting of Heritage Assets’, December 2017.  
 
Although Hilton Park has been altered, especially by 20th century development, large parts of the 
historic designed landscape remain intact and are part of the setting for Hilton Hall (Grade I listed, 
National heritage List for England ref: 1039174) and associated buildings, including early 19th 
century conservatory (Grade I listed, NHLE ref: 1039176). Construction of the new link road will 
result in the loss of part of the park, including the south section of the historic lake (Lower Pool) and 
western arm of the Shrubbery. The surviving historic layout east of the road will remain intact, 
including the area enclosed by the Shrubbery. This area of parkland is subdivided by 20th century 
ponds and surrounding planting, and has lost the majority of its open growing parkland trees, but 
still retains its parkland character, which could be in part recovered with through restoration 
planting of individual parkland trees.   
 
Historic England broadly agrees with the assessment set out in the Highways England Technical 
Note: ‘8.22 Assessment of Alternative Locations for Mitigation in Plot 5/2’ January 2021. That report 
sets out 4 alternative approaches to planting. These options, and variants of them, comprised the 
framework for the site meeting of 6th January.  
 
Option 1 would cause some harm to the historic environment. This is because location 4/20C is 
alongside the historic park’s west entrance, lodge, and approach road that are a more significant 
part of the setting of Hilton Hall and the Conservatory than the current proposal plot 5/2 is . The 
level of harm, however, is limited because 4/20C will be to the west of the new road and severed 
from the rest of the historic park to the east of the road.  
 
Options 2-4 involve progressively more planting to the east of the new road and would progressively 
cause more harm to the Historic Environment.  
 
Option 2. Adding woodland planting to ‘thicken’ the Shrubbery. This would have a lesser degree of 
impact than planting of a single block of woodland in the parkland enclosed by the Shrubbery. It 
would have a greater impact, however, than planting all of the new woodland on the west side of 
the new road. 
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